
 

 

 

 

 

Prosser Memorial Health 

Board of Commissioners 

 

Board Packet 

June 30, 2022 

 

 

 
  



June 28, 2022 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS – WORK SESSION 
TUESDAY, June 28, 2022   

6:00 PM - WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
 AGENDA  

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams                       Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 
Keith Sattler        Kristi Mellema, CQO 
Brandon Bowden                                                                                        Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
Neilan McPartland                                  Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 
  
        
                                 GUESTS:    Adam Trumbour, Senior Project Manager, NV5 
                          Paul Kramer, Project Director, NV5 
                                                                                                           Kurt Broeckelmann, Architect, bcDG 
                                                                                                           Gary Hicks, Financial Advisor 
                                                                                                           Brandon Potts, Bouten Construction 
                                                                                                           Nick Gonzalez, Bouten Construction 
                                                                                                            

                   
  I.  CALL TO ORDER 
                   

 
 II.   SERVICES 
        A.  Replacement Facility Update                         

            1. Design Updates                                                                                                      
                   a. VE Update (Attachment D) (Attachment E)                                                           bcDG 
                   b. SEPA/Traffic Study/CON (Attachment F) (Attachment G)                                   NV5 

      c. DOH/USDA/City of Prosser Reviews                                                            bcDG 
      d. SVID                                                                                                                    NV5 
 
                      
            2. GC/CM Update                                                                                                                  
                   a. Bouten Construction (Attachment J)                                                                     Bouten 
                   b. GC/CM Proposal                                                                                                           NV5 
            
 
            3.  Draft Schedule Update (Attachment M)                                                                 NV5/bcDG/Bouten             
       

 



June 28, 2022 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

  
 
           4. Financing                                                                                                                                 Gary 
 a. USDA 

                b. Construction Loan 
 
       B. Capital Equipment/Renovation Requests 
             1. GE Wireless Electronic Fetal Monitor (Attachment N)                                   Merry 
             2. Supplemental OR AC System (Attachment O)                                                  Craig 
      
 
 
  
III.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
        A. PMH Foundation Update                                                                                                         Shannon 
        B. 2021 PMH Medicare Cost Report (Attachment V)                                                               David 
 
 IV. QUALITY 
        A. CAH Annual Program Review (Attachment Y)                                                                      Kristi 
        B. Board Policies (Attachment AA) (Attachment BB) (Attachment CC)                               Craig 
 
        
   V.  ADJOURN  



June 30, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

THURSDAY, June 30, 2022     
6:00 PM, WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  AGENDA 
 

COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams        Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

              Keith Sattler                       Kristi Mellema, CQO  
              Brandon Bowden       Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
              Neilan McPartland                                                                                                 Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO      
                                   
               GUEST: Dr. Syed Hashmi   
    
   I.  CALL TO ORDER 
       A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
   
 
  II.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 III.  APPROVE AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Agenda 
 
 
 IV.  CONSENT AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Consent Agenda 

A. Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes for May 26, 2022.    
       B.   Payroll and AP Vouchers #165154 through #165937 dated 05-19-22 through 06-22-22 in the amount of 
             $8,428,025.47. Board Policies #100.0029 #100.0030 #100.0032. 
                   
 V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 
       A.  Medical Staff Report and Credentialing       Dr. Hashmi        
             Action Requested - Advancement from Provisional 
             1. Advancement from Provisional 
            Alex Arnold, ARNP – Advanced Practice Clinician Hospital privileges in Family Medicine effective July 1, 2022   

through February 1, 2024. 
 
               Stephen McPhee, PA-C – Advanced Practice Clinician Hospital privileges in Family Medicine effective July 1, 

2022 through February 1, 2024. 
 
 
 



June 30, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

          2. New Appointment 
               Action Requested – New Appointment and Requested Clinic Privileges 
               Jacob Braun, DO – Provisional/Locum Tenens staff with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine effective 

July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022. 
 
               Jacob Ernst, DO – Provisional/Locum Tenens staff with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine effective 

July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022. 
 
               Jonathan Kim, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens staff with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine effective 

July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022. 
 
               Eric Thomas, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens staff with requested privileges in General Surgery effective July 1, 

2022 through December 31, 2022.  
 
               Feras Jalab, MD – Provisional/Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Diagnostic Radiology effective July 

1, 2022 through December 31, 2022. 
 
 

 
         3.  Reappointment 
  Action Requested – Reappointment and Requested Clinical Privileges 
            Jose Santa-Cruz, MD – Reappointment to Active staff with requested privileges in Family Medicine effective July 

1, 2022 through June 30, 2024. 
 
               Coral Tieu, MD – Reappointment to Active staff with requested privileges in Otolaryngology effective  
               July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024. 
 
               Thomas Tieu, MD- Reappointment to Active staff with requested privileges in Urology effective July 1, 2022                

through June 30, 2024. 
 
               Robert Wenger, DO- Reappointment to Active staff with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine effective 

July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024.  
 
               Brian Staley, MD - Reappointment to Consulting staff with requested privileges in Pathology effective  
               July 1,2022 through June 30, 2024. 
 
               Danielle Whitley, MD- Reappointment to Locum Tenens staff with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine 

effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024 
 
               Afton Dunham, ARNP- Reappointment to Advanced Practice Clinician staff with requested privileges in Family 

Medicine effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024. 
 
               Pamela Morris, ARNP- Reappointment to Advance Practice Clinician staff with requested privileges in 
               Family Medicine effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024. 
 
               Rebecca Morris, CNM- Reappointment to Advanced Practice Clinician staff with requested privileges in 

Midwifery effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024. 
 
               Jarret Kuo, MD- Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Diagnostic Radiology              

effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024.  
 
               Karen Phillips, MD- Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Diagnostic Radiology 

effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024. 



June 30, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 
               Shannon St. Clair, MD- Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Diagnostic Radiology    

effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024. 
 

               Frank Welte, MD- Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Diagnostic Radiology   
effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024. 

 
James Wang, MD- Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective  

              July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024. 
 
  
            
    
VI.   FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
         A.  Review Financial Reports for May 2022 (Attachment U)                                                                           David  
               Action Requested – Financial Reports 
 
         B. PMH Foundation New Board Member-Alan Steen                                                                                      Shannon 
                Action Requested- Alan Steen 
 
         C. Capital Equipment 
              1. GE Wireless Electronic Fetal Monitor at a cost not to exceed $30,584.14. (Attachment N)            Merry 
                Action Requested- GE Wireless Fetal Monitor 
 
              2. Air Handling Unit-OR at a cost not to exceed $16,678.00. (Attachment O)                                         Merry/Craig  
                 Action Requested -Air Handling Unit OR 
 
         D. 2021 Medicare Cost Report Review and Approval (Attachment V)                                                          David 
                Action Requested-2021 Medicare Cost Report 
   
 VII.  QUALITY 
 
         A. PMH CAH Annual Program Review (Attachment Y)                                                                                      Kristi 
              Action Requested-PMH CAH Annual Review 
 
         B.  COVID-19 Update/COVID-19 Financial Plan                                                                                             Merry / David 
 
         C.  Legislative and Political Updates                                                                                              Commissioner Bestebreur 
 
         D.   CEO/Operations Report                               Craig  
 
  
 
  VIII.  ADJOURN 
 
  



 

 

 
PMH 

Board of Commissioners 
Work Plan – FY2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
January 
 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve 2022 Strategic Plan 
and 2022 Patient Care Scorecards 

• Sign Financial Disclosure and Conflict 
of Interest Statements 

• Approve 2022 Risk Management and 
Quality Assurance Plans 

• Select and Approve Board Officers 

• Review Board Committee structure 
and membership 

 
SERVICES: 

• Approve acquisition of surgical 
equipment 

• Approve radiologist contracts 

• Approve Construction Loan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 Employee Engagement 
Survey Results 

• Review 2021 Medical Staff 
Engagement Survey Results 

 
QUALITY: 

• Review Board Self-Evaluation 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review semi-annual financial 
performance report for PMH Clinics 

 
SERVICES: 
     Replacement Facility Update 

• Construction Loan Schedule Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
February SERVICES: 

• Approve construction mini-MACC 

• Approve construction documents 
 

QUALITY: 

• Approve 2022 Board Action Plan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review and Approve 2022 Leadership 
Incentive Compensation Program 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend AHA Governance Conference  
 
PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Patient Loyalty Summary report 

• Review Patient Engagement Plan 
 
SERVICES: 

Replacement Facility Update:  

• Construction Documents 

• Mini-MACC 

• Schedule 

March QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2022 Corporate Compliance 
Plan 

• Approve 2022 Infection Prevention 
Control Plan 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

• Review and Approve 2022 Leadership 
Incentive Compensation Program 

 
MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Providers’ Day Celebration 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accept 2021 Audit Report 
 
SERVICES: 

• Approve the MACC / GMP for the 
new facility 

 
 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review 2021 Utilization Review 
Performance 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review 2021 Corporate Compliance 
Report  

• Review 2021 Infection Prevention 
Summary 
 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Performance 
Report 

• Review the Communications 
Calendar 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Presentation of the 2021 Audit 
Report by Auditors 

• Capital Campaign Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
PATIENT LOYALTY 

• Approve the 2022 Utilization Review 
Plan 

 
 
 

SERVICES: Replacement Facility Update 

• MCAA / GMP 

• USDA Update 

• Budget 

April QUALITY: 

• Approve 2022 Community Benefits 
Report 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

• Conduct CEO Evaluation 
 

SERVICES: 

• Approve the MACC / GMP for the 
new facility 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SERVICES: Replacement Facility Update 

• MCAA / GMP 

• USDA Update 

• Budget 
QUALITY: 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

• Review 2021 Community Benefits 
Report 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 Leadership Performance 
(LEM) 

• Review Employee Engagement Plan 

• Review the Communications 
Calendar 
 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 FPPE/OPPE Summary 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review Interpreter Services Plan 

• Call Center Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
May EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Hospital Week 
 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Medical Staff Engagement Plan 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Employee Retirement Update 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review Customer Service Program 
 
 

June QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2021 CAH Annual Report 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2022 Cost Report 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Report 2022 Q1 Utilization Review 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Leader Assessment and 
Development Program 
 

SERVICES: 

• Marketing Update 

• PMH Telehealth Update 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accounting Software Update 
 

July MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend BOC, Medical Staff and 
Leadership Engagement Activity 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve Single Audit 
 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Review PMH Clinic productivity 
 
 

QUALITY: 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
 

 
 

• Quality Committee Report 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

• Board Judiciary Responsibilities 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Human Resources Update 

• Review Leadership and Exempt Wage 
Scales 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review Semi-Annual Financial 
Performance Report for PMH Clinics 

• Foundation Update 
 

August EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend end of summer Engagement 
Activity for BOC, Medical Staff, and 
all staff 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Banking relationship Selection 
  

No Board Work Session 
 
 
 
 
 

September QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 
 

 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Benefit Changes 

• Review Leadership Development 
Activities 

 
SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility update 
 
PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Nurse Educator Update 

October  QUALITY: 

• Conduct 2023 Strategic Planning  



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

 
EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Leadership Accountability 
Resource Tools 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Patient Loyalty Summary 
 

November FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve Property Tax 
Request for County Commissioners 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

QUALITY: 

• iVantage Update 
 
SERVICES: 

• Review draft 2023 Strategic Plan; 
2023 Marketing and IT Plans; and 
Medical Staff Model/2023 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Non-exempt (union) 
performance evaluation template 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review draft 2023 Budget 
 

December QUALITY: 

• Complete Board Self-Evaluations 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve the 2023 Environment of 
Care Plan 

 
SERVICES: 

• Approve 2023 Strategic Plan; 2023 
Marketing and IT Plans; and Medical 

QUALITY: 

• Review the 2022 Environment of 
Care Plan 
 

 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
Staff Model/2023 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2023 Operating and Capital 
Budgets 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend holiday celebration 
 

 



2022 -  Patient Care Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2022 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2022 YTD 2021 2020

Quality
Left Without Being Seen <0.80% 2.02% 1.47% 0.88% 2.25% 2.97% 1.99% 1.47% 0.80%
Median Admit Decision Time to ED Departure Time for Admitted Patients <44 min 53 56 51 51 45 51 60 70
Median Time from ED Arrival to Departure for Discharged ED Patients <107 min 109 115 114 114 110 112 117 128
Severe Preeclamptic Mothers:  Timely Treatment Rate >90.00% 42.86% 57.14% 86.21% 60.00% 84.62% 65.17% N/A N/A
All-Cause Unplanned 30 Day Inpatient Readmissions <2.70% 9.59% 3.28% 5.66% 3.64% 6.82% 5.94% 5.80% 3.80%
Sepsis - Early Management Bundle >94.40% 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 90.91% 94.40% 72.73%
Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.07% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0% 0.29%
Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result <21.89% 22.40% 24.19% 24.53% 21.32% 22.32% 22.95% 21.89% 27.61%
Medication Reconciliation Completed >90.00% 96.30% 94.74% 90.74% 92.00% 88.00% 92.23% 46% 47.15%
Turnaround time of 30 minutes or less for STAT testing <30 min 22.0 21.0 21.0 21.0 19.0 20.8 38 37.5
Median Time to ECG for Patients Presenting to the ED with Chest Pain < 6.3 min 5.0 3.0 5.0 5.0 4.0 4.4 6.3 7
Surgical Site Infection <0.19% 0.00% 0.59% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.09% 0.19% 0.25%
Bar Code Scanning:  Medication Compliance >93.50% 94.91% 95.77% 95.43% 95.00% 94.54% 95.13% 93.50% 98.90%
Bar Code Scanning:  Patient Compliance >94.70% 96.42% 95.81% 96.17% 96.16% 95.95% 96.10% 94.70% N/A
*Overall Quality Performance Benchmark (iVantage) >61 61 61 36 36 36 31 61 53
*Falls with Injury <2 - - - - - - 3 2

Green at or above Goal  (4)
Yellow within 10% of Goal  (2)
Red More than 10% below Goal  (0)



2022 -  Strategic Plan Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2022 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2022 YTD 2021 Avg 2020 Avg

Patient Loyalty
IP - "Would Recommend" >93.1% 94.8% 92.4% 91.7% 92.9% 90.5% 92.8% 93.1% 87.9%
ED - "Would Recommend" >84.0% 83.9% 81.7% 76.4% 88.0% 88.8% 83.1% 84.0% 81.4%
Acute Care - "Would Recommend" >91.8% 90.9% 94.4% 87.5% 94.4% 87.5% 91.7% 91.8% 84.1%
OB - "Would Recommend" >93.6% 99.0% 100.0% 97.7% 100.0% 88.9% 96.4% 93.6% 92.3%
Outpatient Surgery - "Would Recommend" >96.6% 100.0% 100.0% 97.2% 97.7% 94.4% 96.4% 96.6% 89.8%
Clinic - "Would Recommend" >91.0% 92.8% 97.5% 91.7% 97.6% 91.8% 9417.0% 91.0% 87.3%
Outpatient - "Would Recommend" >94.1% 98.1% 96.1% 93.5% 96.0% 96.0% 96.1% 94.1% 88.1%
Composite Score >92.9% 95.7% 95.2% 94.4% 94.1% 93.8% 93.8% 92.9% N/A
Medical Staff Development
Medical Staff Turnover <10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 12% 0.2%
Prosser Specialty Clinic Visits 1,352 1,386 1,429 1,617 1,428 1,366 1,445 1,318 954
Benton City Clinic Visits 868 775 650 822 657 870 755 732 837
Prosser RHC Clinic Visits 1,291 1,063 1,111 1,206 1,106 1,211 1,139 1,227 1,226
Grandview Clinic Visits 969 1,055 833 1,021 873 986 954 778 589
Women's Health Center 679 508 600 660 533 611 582 602 601
*# of Active Medical Staff >51 52 53 53 54 55 53 51 45
Employee Development
403(B) Participation Rate >98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 46%
Average Recruitment Time (days) <21 19 26 40 11 15 22 21 32
# of Open Positions (Vacancies) <23 32 28 35 31 32 32 32 29
Hours of Overtime - Overtime/Total Hours Worked <4.5% 6.8% 5.3% 4.9% 6.0% 6.3% 5.9% 6.1% 5.9%
Agency - Cost/Total Labor <7.7% 6.2% 10.6% 6.9% 6.9% 5.7% 7.3% 7.7% 7.6%
Turnover Rate <0.6% 0.6% 1.2% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 0.6%
Timely Evaluations >71.8% 95.1% 85.0% 84.2% 93.0% 79.0% 87.3% 71.8% 70.2%
Education Hours/FTE >2.15 0.64 1.33 1.39 0.95 0.68 1.00 1.05 1.22
New Hire (Tenure) < 1 year <10% 0.6% 0.6% 0% 0.6% 0.3% 0.4% 10% 0%
* Lost Workdays due to On-the-Job Injuries <10.25 11 7 7 0 0 5 19.49 10.25
Quality
ED Encounters - Left Without Being Seen <0.8% 2.0% 1.5% 0.9% 2.3% 3.0% 1.9% 1.4% 0.8%
*Falls with Injury <2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 2
Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.1% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.0% 0.3%
All-Cause Unplanned Readmissions within 30 Days <2.7% 9.6% 3.3% 5.7% 3.6% 6.8% 5.8% 6.1% 3.8%
Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result <21.88% 22.40% 24.19% 24.53% 21.32% 22.32% 22.95% 21.88% 27.61%
Services
ED Visits 1,083 1,287 949 1,138 1,246 1,448 1,214 1,105 805
Inpatient Admissions 96 123 98 115 102 89 105 116 83
OB Deliveries 50 47 41 61 46 41 47 49 41
Surgeries and Endoscopies 187 162 170 268 274 288 232 179 101
Diagnostic Imaging Procedures 2,851 2,462 2,619 3,134 2,915 2,981 2,822 2,992 2,280
Lab Procedures 14,000 14,139 13,806 14,818 13,359 15,075 14,239 14,327 11,768
Adjusted Patient Days 1,900 1,627 1,819 2,016 1,838 2,127 1,885 1,697 1,393
Therapy Visits 1,651 1,225 1,391 1,542 1,339 1,420 1,383 1,453 1,314
Outpatient Special Procedures Visits 325 241 221 332 249 277 264 324 247
Financial Performance
Net Days in Accounts Receivable 50 55 58 55 56 55 55 51 63
*Total Margin 6.90% 5.2% 13.6% 13.3% 11.2% 5.2% 10.0% 18.40% 4.50%
Net Operating Revenue/FTE 19,431$ 17,959$ 18,695$ 21,800$ 19,651$ 20,465$ 19,714$ 20,682$ 17,191$
Labor as % of net Revenue 56.30% 63.18% 52.36% 48.39% 62.85% 60.40% 57.44% 57.00% 61.30%
Operating Expense/FTE 18,177$ 17,959$ 16,155$ 17,591$ 17,598$ 19,469$ 17,754$ 16,940$ 15,891$
*Days Cash on Hand 109 142 150 154 150 148 148 155 183
Commercial % 28.60% 29.90% 30.90% 31.80% 31.70% 31.40% 31.40% 29.00% 29.00%
Total Labor Expense/Total Expense 60.20% 60.73% 60.33% 59.41% 62.99% 62.87% 61.27% 61.00% 61.30%

Green at or above Goal
Yellow within 10% of Goal
Red More than 10% below Goal
*Cumulative Total - goal is year end number



 

 

 

BOARD WORK SESSION                                                                    May 24, 2022                                              WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 
 

STAFF PRESENT GUESTS   COMMUNITY        
MEMBERS 

• Dr. Steve Kenny                        

• Keith Sattler  

• Glenn Bestebreur 

• Susan Reams 

• Brandon Bowden 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

• Kristi Mellema, CCO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

• Dr. Brian Sollers 

Paul Kramer, NV5 
Kurt Broeckelmann, bcDG 
Adam Trumbour, Senior Project 
Manager, NV5 
 

None 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

 I.   CALL TO ORDER Meeting was called to order by 
Commissioner Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 

None. None. 

II.    Public Comment  None. None. 

III.  SERVICES DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

        A.  Replacement Facility  
              Update 

 
 
 

   

             1. Bid Update 
                 a. Where are we today? 

1. GC/CM Update 
   (Attachment D) 

(Attachment E) 
 
 

Representatives from NV5 presented, an 
GC/CM Update for the PMH Replacement 
Facility Project.  The Team plans to 
present a GC/CM contract for review and 
approval in June. 
 
 

None. None. 



 

 

b. Next Steps/Schedule 
 

The project team outlined the next steps 
being considered due to the budget 
variance including: value engineering and 
a targeted bid/negotiation approach. 
These steps will change the project 
schedule depending upon which options 
are selected for implementation. The 
team plans to present an updated Project 
Schedule to the Board in June. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        2. VE Update 
           (Attachment H) 

 

Kurt Broeckelmann bgDG, reviewed the 
items being investigated on the VE log 
(Attachment H). Each item was discussed, 
and Kurt will update the Board regarding 
the proposed changes and their impact on 
the schedule and budget in June. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None. None. 

                      3. Other Design 
Updates 

                   
                          a. SEPA/Traffic 

Study/CON 
                           
 

Project Team members updated the Board 
on: our SEPA/ Traffic Study/CON issues; 
regulatory (DOH/USDA/City) reviews and 
our progress on them; and our plan to 
work with SVID (Sunnyside Valley 
Irrigation District) on burying the overflow 
canal on our property. 

None. None. 



 

 

                          b. DOH/USDA/City 
of Prosser Reviews 

 
                          c. SVID 
 
                      

                4.  Financing      
(Attachment I) 

 
              a. USDA 
 
              b. Construction Loan 

                
 

Financing of the project was briefly 
discussed including potential options for 
additional financing if needed. It was 
noted that no financing decisions can be 
made until we have a GMP (Guaranteed 
Maximum Price) for the project. 
 
 

None.       None. 

        B. Capital Equipment 
            1. Blood Perfusion Tool 

(Attachment J)  
 
           2. IT Firewall 

(Attachment K)   
   
           3. Omni Hysteroscopy 

Light and Instrument 
Set (Attachment L)   

 
            4. Hamilton Ventilators 

(Attachment M)      
 
            5. Interpreter iPads, Carts 

and Speakers 
(Attachment N)                                                                                               

 
      
 
     
             

Merry Fuller and Craig reviewed several 
requests for capital equipment including: a 
blood perfusion tool; an IT firewall; an 
Omni Hysteroscopy Light and instrument 
set; (2) Hamilton Ventilators; and 16 
interpreter carts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None. The Board will be 
asked to approve 
these acquisitions 
at the May Board 
Meeting. 



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 VI. QUALITY DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

            1. Department of Health 
Survey 

Merry presented the Department of 
Health Survey results from a recent 
survey. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None. None. 

VII. ADJOURN 

There being no further regular business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 8:12 p.m. 

 

 



 

 

 

        BOARD MEETING                                                                                  May 26, 2022                                                WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  COMMISSIONERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT                         MEDICAL STAFF                                              GUESTS 

• Steve Kenny Ph.D. 

• Glenn Bestebreur 

• Susan Reams 

• Keith Sattler 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Brandon Bowden 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO  

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO  

• Kristi Mellema, CCQO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

• Dr. Terry Murphy   

              AGENDA                                                                                                                                                              DISCUSSION                                    ACTION      FOLLOW-UP 

   I.    Call to Order  Meeting was called to order by Commissioner 
Kenny at 6:01 p.m. 

    

      A. Pledge of Allegiance        

 II.  Public Comment None.  None. None. 

III.  Approve Agenda 
 

None. Commissioner Dietrich made a Motion to 
approve the revised April 28, 2022, Agenda.  
The Motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Sattler and passed with 5 in favor, 0 
opposed.                 

None. 

IV.  APPROVE CONSENT 
       AGENDA  
      A. Board of Commissioners     
           Meeting Minutes for 
           April 28, 2022. 
      B. Board of Commissioners 

meeting minutes for May 
3, 2022. 

None. Commissioner Dietrich made a Motion to 
approve the Consent Agenda. The Motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Reams            
and passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed.  

None. 



 

 

      C. Payroll & AP Vouchers  
       #164562 through 
      #165153 dated 04.21.22. 

        through 05.18.22 in the     
amount of $7,105,325.70; 
and Surplus Items: #1068:  

        (1) Isotemp Laboratory 
              Freezer; 
         (4) Respironics V30 BiPAP 
                Systems; and 
         (2) Respironics V60 BiPAP 
               Systems. 
 
                      
 

V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT                                 DISCUSSION                                                                     ACTION                                       FOLLOW-UP 

     A.    Medical Staff Report     
and Credentialing 

 
 
 

  None. 

1. Advancement from 
Provisional 

Dr. Terry Murphy presented the following providers 
for Advancement from Provisional: 
 
Blake Roy, CRNA – Advanced Practice Clinician 
privileges in Anesthesia effective June 1, 2022 
through   December 1, 2023. 
 
Michael McCarthy, MD- Consulting privileges in 
Pediatric Pulmonology effective June 1, 2022 
through   December 1, 2023. 
 
Robert Jackson, MD- Telemedicine privileges in 
Neurology effective June 1, 2022 through 
December 1, 2023. 
 
 

A Motion to approve the Advancement from 
Provisional Appointment and requested 
Clinical Privileges that were reviewed and 
recommended by the Department Chair, the 
Credentialing Committee and Medical 
Executive Committee for the following 
providers was made by Commissioner 
Sattler and seconded by Commissioner 
Reams.  The Motion passed with 6 in favor, 
0 opposed. 

• Blake Roy, CRNA 

• Michael McCarthy, MD 

• Robert Jackson, MD 
 

None. 



 

 

 

                      2.  New Appointments           
 

Dr. Terry Murphy presented the following New 
Appointments:   
 
Jennifer Brindle, MD – Active Staff with requested 
privileges in Family Medicine effective June 1, 2022 
through November 30, 2022. 
 
 Caleb Haws, DO – Active Staff with requested 
privileges in Internal Medicine/Hospitalist effective 
June 1, 2022 through November 30, 2022. 
 

A Motion to approve the New Appointments 
and requested Clinical Privileges that were 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive 
Committee for the following providers was 
made by Commissioner Reams and 
seconded by Commissioner Dietrich.  The 
Motion passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed. 

• Jennifer Brindle, MD 

• Caleb Haws, DO 

None. 

              3. Reappointment Dr. Terry Murphy presented the following providers 
for Reappointment:   
 
 Lindsey Smith, DO – Reappointment to Active Staff 
with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine 
effective June 1, 2022 through May 31, 2024. 
 
Jeffrey Zuckerman, MD- Reappointment to Active 
Staff with requested privileges in Diagnostic 
Radiology effective June 1, 2022 through May 31, 
2024. 
 
Ryan McDonald, CRNA- Reappointment to 
Advanced Practice Clinician Staff with requested 
privileges in Anesthesia effective June 1, 2022 
through May 31, 2024. 
 
 Brandon Peterson, MD- Reappointment to 
Consulting Staff with requested privileges in 
Pathology effective June 1, 2022 through May 31, 
2024.  
 

A Motion to approve the reappointment and 
requested Clinical Privileges that were 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive 
Committee for the following provider was 
made by Commissioner Reams and 
seconded by Commissioner Sattler.  The 
Motion passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

• Lindsey Smith, DO 

• Jeffrey Zuckerman, MD 

• Ryan McDonald, CRNA 

• Brandon Peterson, MD 

• James Giles, MD 

• Elizabeth Walz, MD 

• Shannon Calhoun, MD 

• Kathryn Cambron, MD 

• Jason Grennan, MD 

• David Henley, MD 

• Jonathan Jaksha, MD 

• Steven McCormack, MD 

• Matthew Mendlick, MD 

• Mohammed Quraishi, MD 

 



 

 

 James Giles, MD - Reappointment to Telemedicine 
Staff with requested privileges in Neurology 
effective   June 1,2022 through May 31, 2024. 
 
 Elizabeth Walz, MD- Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Diagnostic Radiology effective June 1, 2022 through 
May 31, 2024 
 
Shannon Calhoun, MD- Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Diagnostic Radiology effective June 1, 2022 through 
May 31, 2024. 
 
 Kathryn Cambron, MD- Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Diagnostic Radiology effective June 1, 2022 through 
May 31, 2024. 
 
Jason Grennan, MD- Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Diagnostic Radiology effective June 1, 2022 through 
May 31, 2024. 
 
 David Henley, MD- Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Diagnostic Radiology effective June 1, 2022 through 
May 31, 2024.  
 
 Jonathan Jaksha, MD- Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Diagnostic Radiology effective June 1, 2022 through 
May 31, 2024. 
 
Steven McCormack, MD- Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Diagnostic Radiology effective June 1, 2022 through 
May 31, 2024. 



 

 

Matthew Mendlick, MD- Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Diagnostic Radiology effective June 1, 2022 through 
May 31, 2024. 
 
Mohammed Quraishi, MD- Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Diagnostic Radiology effective June 1, 2022 through 
May 31, 2024. 
 
 
  
 

VI.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP                        DISCUSSION                                                                        ACTION                                       FOLLOW-UP 

      A.  Review Financial  
            Reports for April 
            2022 (Attachment U) 

 

David Rollins presented the April 2022 Financial 
Reports.   
 

A Motion to accept the Financial Reports for 
April 2022, was made by Commissioner 
Sattler, and seconded by Commissioner 
Reams. The Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 
opposed. 
 

None. 

B.   Capital Equipment 
Acquisitions 

 
            1. (1) Blood Perfusion    

Tool at a cost not to 
exceed $138,888.42 
(Attachment J). 

 
 
 

 

Merry Fuller and Craig Marks presented (1) Blood 
Perfusion Tool cost and benefit report. 
 
 
 

A Motion to approve the acquisition of (1) 
Blood Perfusion Tool at a cost not to exceed 
$138,888.42, was made by Commissioner 
Sattler, and seconded by Commissioner 
Reams. The Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 
opposed. 
 

None.    

             2. (1) IT Firewall at a 
cost not to exceed 
$42,765.27 
(Attachment K). 

 

Merry Fuller and Craig Marks presented (1) IT 
Firewall cost and benefit report. 
 
 
 
 

A Motion to approve the acquisition of (1) IT 
Firewall at a cost not to exceed $42,765.27 
was made by Commissioner Bestebreur and 
seconded by Commissioner Dietrich. The 
Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 

 



 

 

 

             3. (1) Omni 
Hysteroscopy Light and 
Instrument Set at a 
cost not to exceed 
$9,771.82  

              (Attachment L). 
 

Merry Fuller and Craig Marks presented (1) Omni 
Hysteroscopy Light and instrument set cost and 
benefit report. 
 
 

A Motion to approve acquisition of (1) Omni 
Hysteroscopy Light and Instrument Set at a 
cost not to exceed $9,771.82 was made by 
Commissioner Reams and seconded by 
Commissioner Bestebreur. The Motion 
passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 

 

4. (2) Hamilton  
               Ventilators at a cost 

not to exceed $23,892 
(Attachment M). 

 

Merry Fuller and Craig Marks presented (2) 
Hamilton Ventilators cost and benefit report. 
 
 

A Motion to approve the acquisition of (2) 
Hamilton Ventilators at a cost not to exceed 
$23,892 was made by Commissioner 
Bestebreur and seconded by Commissioner 
Sattler. The Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 
opposed. 

 

             5. (16) Interpreter iPads, 
Carts, and Speakers at 
a cost not to exceed 
$25,068.01 
(Attachment N). 
 

Merry Fuller and Craig Marks presented (16) 
Interpreter iPads, Carts, and Speakers costs and 
benefit report. 

A Motion to approve the acquisition of (16) 
Interpreter iPads, Carts, and Speakers at a 
cost not to exceed $25,068.01 was made by 
Commissioner Dietrich and seconded by 
Commissioner Reams. The Motion passed 
with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 

 

VII.  QUALITY                                                                        DISCUSSION                                                                        ACTION                                         FOLLOW-UP 

A.  COVID-19 Update/Covid 19 
Financial Plan  

             (Attachment X)  

Merry Fuller and David provided a COVID-19 
Update and reviewed the COVID-19 Financial Plan. 
 
 
   

None. None. 

B. Legislative and Political   
Updates 

Commissioner Bestebreur gave a legislative and 
political update. 
 
 
 

None. None. 

C.  CEO/Operations Report Craig provided a brief Operations Report based 
upon his written report included in the May Board 
Packet. 

None. 
 
 

None. 



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

There being no further regular business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the regular business meeting at 7:28 p.m.  The Board entered into 
Executive Session at 7:29 p.m. which was expected to last approximately 1 hour. 

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

B.  RCW 42.30.110 (g) To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a public employee.   
          

IX. RESUME SESSION 

Open session resumed at 8:25p.m.  A Motion was made by 
Commissioner Sattler to approve a 
salary increase for the CEO based 
upon the 2021 Incentive 
Compensation Program.  The 
Motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Reams.  The Motion 
passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed.   
 

None. 

  A second Motion was made by 
Commissioner Dietrich to provide a 
Bonus Payment for the CEO 
according to the 2021 Incentive 
Compensation Program. The 
Motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Sattler.  The Motion 
passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed.   
 

None. 

XII.  ADJOURN  

There being no further business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 8:30 p.m. 



 

JOINT CONFERENCE COMMITTEE                                                   June 22, 2022                                                  VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT NON-MEMBERS PRESENT 

• Commissioner S. Reams 

• Commissioner S. Dietrich 

• Commissioner S. Kenny 

• C. Marks, CEO 

• Dr. B. Sollers 
 

• M. Fuller, CNO, COO 

• K. Mellema, CQO, CCO 

• Dr. S. Hashmi 
 
 

     AGENDA ITEM                                                                                DISCUSSION                                            RECOMMENDATION            FOLLOW-UP 

CALL TO ORDER  Meeting was called to order by Commissioner Reams at 7:01 am 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES April 2022 minutes were reviewed and approved by the Committee.  For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

QUALITY 

2021 Critical Access 
Hospital Annual Report 

K. Mellema reported on the Annual CAH Program Review which is a 
document representing compliance with Federal regulations and 
Critical Access Hospital Condition of Participation.  The Program 
Review includes: 

1. The utilization of CAH services, including at least the number 
of patients served and the volume of services. 

2. A representative sample of both active and closed clinical 
records. 

3. The CAH’s health care policies. 
The purpose of the review is: 

• To determine if utilization of services were appropriate to 
meet the community needs. 

• To determine compliance with established policies and 
procedures. 

• Identify changes, if needed, in the program services and/or 
policies. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 



Clinic Risk Assessment K. Mellema reported that on June 14th and 15th there were two risk 
consultants here from Physicians Insurance to conduct a risk 
assessment on the three primary care clinics and the specialty clinic.  
This was a voluntary assessment and is non-punitive.  The 
assessment resulted in several findings such as: the need for 
standardization across the clinics, emergency medical kits, mock 
emergency medical drills, triage protocols, etc.  There will be four 
final reports, one for each clinic assessed, that will be sent to us 
within the month. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 

Policy Manager K. Mellema reported that the new policy system will go live for all 
staff on July 1st.  Maryann Hildebrant has done a huge amount of 
work by formatting every policy from every department.  The upload 
of the policies to the new system has started.  The contract with our 
current policy system, Policy Tech, expires on 7/31/22. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 

PATIENT LOYALTY 

Patient Experience 
Results 

M. Fuller reported on the Patient Loyalty Summary Report.   
May results: 

• ED 88.75% 

• Inpatient 90.48% 

• Acute Care 87.5% 

• Family Birthplace 88.89% 

• Out-Patient Surgery 94.4% 

• Clinic Network 91.83% 

• Out-Patient Services 96% 
Emergency Department is of significant concern due to the increased 
patient volumes.  To help with this extra demand, we have increased 
our core staffing by adding a mid shift RN and a tech, cross training 
RNs from other departments to help when necessary, adding 10 
hours of APC support during the surge hours and implementing 
nurse driven protocols.  Currently, OSP is not utilized after hours so 
it would not take a lot to overflow there.  Looking at how to optimize 
that area. 
 

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item.  

SERVICES 

Replacement Facility 
Update 

C. Marks shared images of the new facility.  One was the previously 
approved design with a higher roof and a second image of a newly 
proposed design with a lower roof which is six feet lower than the 
original design.  This height difference gets us below the height 
restriction of the city.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 



We are currently in negotiations with Bouten Construction.  
Meetings with Bouten have gone well and we have reached an 
agreement on pre-construction services, which includes services 
through the presentation of a MACC. The cost of these services was 
already approved in the original GC/CM contract. It is our intent to 
have the Board approve a GC/CM contract with Bouten Construction 
at the June Board Meeting. Based on the current size of our project, 
every 1% increase in interest rates increases our cost to finance our 
construction loan and any additional debt (estimated to be $10 
million) by over $1 million dollars. 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

Medical Staff 
Recruitment 

Dr. Sollers reported that we are recruiting an orthopedic physician 
who is currently doing a sports medicine fellowship. He will 
complete his fellowship in 2023.   We continue to recruit for a pain 
doctor. We have had a number of interviews but have not found the 
right fit.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 
 
 

Medical Staff 
Engagement (Summer 
Social – July 22nd) 

C. Marks reported that the Summer Social with all Leadership, Board 
of Commissioners and Providers is scheduled for Friday, July 22nd 5-
9pm at WIT Cellars.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 

Committee Member 
Replacement 

C. Marks stated that Dr. Murphy will be done in June.  We need to 
think about who will replace her on this committee.  It was 
suggested that Dr. Carl be invited to this committee as a 
replacement for Dr. Murphy.   Dr. Sollers offered to extend the invite 
to Dr. Carl.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

Employee Engagement 
Activities 

C. Marks reported that we will be doing the Leadership Car Wash 
and Tailgate BBQ Lunch on June 29th from 11am – 1:30pm in the 
ENT/Allergy Clinic Parking lot.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

Financial Performance – 
May 2022 

C. Marks reported that despite strong volumes and gross revenue in 
May, we did not achieve our budgeted net income for the month.  
Unfortunately, most of this revenue was offset by high contractual 
allowances. As a result, our net revenue was only $123,843 (2%) 
better than our budget. Our net income year-to-date is $3.7 million 
compared to our budget of $2.2 million for a positive variance of 
$1.5 million (68%). 

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

COVID-19 Financial Plan 
 

C. Marks reported that since 2020, we have recognized over $15.9 
million in COVID-19 Relief Funds on our income statements and 

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 



currently have $395,163 of unused Relief Funds remaining. We plan 
to use the remaining funds before the end of 2022. 

PMH Foundation Update C. Marks reported that there were three hundred guests Friday night 
for Bottles, Brews and BBQ and 2500 guests on Saturday which is 
twice as many as the last event.  We also sold twenty-six bricks.  We 
do not yet have the total revenue and expenses from the event but 
will have those numbers for the Board work session.   
 
The Foundation Board has unanimously approved Alan Steen joining 
their board. Alan is a long time Prosser resident who retired from 
PMH as a CRNA a little over a year ago. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 

ADJOURNMENT & NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 

Meeting adjourned at 0841 

Next scheduled meeting 6/20/2022 

 

K. Mellema 6/22/2022 



June 27, 2022 Finance Committee  

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday – June 27, 2022,  

7:00 a.m. – Vineyard Conference Room 
AGENDA 

 MEMBERS:          STAFF: 
 Keith Sattler         Craig Marks 
 Neilan McPartland        David Rollins  
 Brandon Bowden        Stephanie Titus 
                   
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
         I.   APPROVE MINUTES 

Action Requested – May 23, 2022, Minutes 

 

       II.    FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
              A.  Review Financials – May 2022 (Attachment U)                                             David 
                    Action Requested – May 2022 Financial Statements 
          
              B.  Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal                                   Stephanie  
 
   
              C.  Voucher Lists                                                                                                                                                 
                   Action Requested – Voucher List - Payroll and AP Vouchers # 165154 through #165937              David 
                   Dated 05-19-22 through 06-22-22 in the amount of $8,428,025.47.             
 
 
 
              D. Capital Equipment                                                                                                                                          David 
                  1. GE Wireless Electronic Fetal Monitor at a cost not to exceed $30,584.14 (Attachment N)          David 
                     Action Requested-GE Wireless Fetal Monitor  
                  
                  2. Air Handling Unit- OR at a cost not to exceed $16,678.00 (Attachment 0)                                      David 
                      Action Requested-Air Handling Unit- OR 
 
      
        III.  ADJOURN  

  

 

 



 

 

 

            FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  May 23, 2022                                    VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

                    
GUESTS 

• Keith Sattler 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Brandon Bowden 
 
 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• David Rollins, CFO  

• Stephanie Titus, Director of Finance Operations 
 
 

  

                     AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

  I.  CALL TO ORDER Keith Sattler called the meeting to order at 7:07 a.m.  
 
 

 

II.   APPROVE MINUTES  
 

A motion to approve the 
Finance Committee Meeting 
Minutes for April 25, 2022, as 
presented was made by 
Brandon Bowden.  The 
motion was seconded by 
Neilan McPartland and 
approved.   
 

None. 

III.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP  
A. Review Financials –  

April 2022 

David Rollins reported Net Income of $833,229 in April 
and Gross Charges were $20,178,331 which was 10% 
higher than budget for the month and 21% greater 

A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the April 2022 
Financial Statements as 

None. 



 

 

             (Attachment U) 
              

than the prior year.  Net Operating Revenue came in 
at $7,441,865 (1% over budget).   
 
Expenses were $6,664,238 in April and (4%) under 
budget driven by lower supply costs.  Surgeries were 
274 vs 185 budget was the big driver as Clinic visits 
were 4,597 vs 5,089 budget and ER visits were 1,246 
vs 1,068 budget. 
 
Cash Flow was a negative ($1,104,777) for the month 
and ($650,345) YTD.  AR increased to a net 56 days 
overall. 
 
Benton City building lease to KiBe School District was 
briefly discussed.  PMH to inquire as to intention of 
KiBe to either purchase or increase lease. 
 

presented to the PMH Board 
of Commissioners was made 
by Neilan McPartland. The 
motion was seconded by 
Brandon Bowden and 
approved.   

      B.  Review Accounts Receivable  
            and Cash Goal  
 

AR increased to 56 net days overall as Collections were 
$6,827,317 versus a goal of $7,083,436.  POS 
collections were $38,469 exceeding a budget of 
$15,000 and prior year $15,475. 
 
 

None. None. 

     C.  Voucher Lists  
           Payroll and AP Vouchers 
           #164562 through #165153 
           Dated 04.21.22 through   
           05.18.22 in the amount of  
           $7,105,325.70.  
            
 

 
 

A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the April 2022 
Financial Statements as 
presented to the PMH Board 
of Commissioners was made 
by Neilan McPartland. The 
motion was seconded by 
Brandon Bowden and 
approved. 

None. 

    D.  Capital Equipment  Capital Equipment will be 
reviewed at Board Meeting. 

None. 



 

 

          1. (1) Blood Perfusion Tool at a 
cost not to exceed 
$138,888.42 
(Attachment J) 

          2. (1) IT Firewall at a cost not 
to exceed $42,765.27 
(Attachment K) 

 
          3. (1) Omni Hysteroscopy Light 

and Instrument Set at a 
cost not to exceed 
$9,771.82 

                    (Attachment L) 
 
           4. (2) Hamilton Ventilators at 

a cost not to exceed 
$23,892 

                    (Attachment M) 
 
           5. (16) Interpreter iPads, 

Carts, and Speakers at a 
cost not to exceed 
$25,068.01  

                    (Attachment N) 
 

    E.  Surplus Items: #1068 
           1. (1) Isotemp Laboratory 

Freezer 
           2. (4) Respironics V30 BiPAP 

system 
          3. (2) Respironics V60 BiPAP 

System 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Surplus items will be 
reviewed at Board Meeting. 

None. 



 

 

 

III.  ADJOURN       

Having declared no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:44 am. 

 



MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

  PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 

FROM:   CRAIG J. MARKS, CEO 

DATE:   June 2022 

RE:  CEO REPORT 

______________________________________________________________________________  

SERVICES 

1.  Replacement Facility Update 

          We continue to aggressively pursue the construction of a replacement facility despite the 

setbacks we experienced in May. The cost to construct the replacement facility came in 

approximately $10 million over our budget and the total cost of the project is now estimated to be 

$103.3 million compared to our original estimate of $78.4 million. As a result of being over budget, 

we are changing our General Contractor/Construction Manager and are pursuing value engineering 

ideas that will reduce our construction cost, without reducing the quality of the facility. These are 

very challenging times as we see inflation and interest rates continuing to increase, both negatively 

impacting our project. While this has slowed us down, we are still committed to breaking ground on 

the project in late 2022 or early 2023. To get an overview of the progress being made on the project, 

I have included the June Monthly Progress Report from our Owner’s Representatives- NV5 

(Attachment A); minutes from our last Project Team Meeting (Attachment B); and the project 

schedule for the next four months (Attachment C). In June, we will utilize the Board Work Session to 

update the Board about all significant aspects of the project including Design; Construction/ 

Schedule/ Budget; and financing. 

 

 A. Design 

     With the projected increased costs to construct our replacement facility, our design team (bcDG) 

immediately began to identify possible design changes, including construction material changes- glass 

vs. EFIS, that would lower the costs. The preliminary list (Attachment D) was reviewed with the Board 

in May and the design team has continued to refine the list and will discuss the list and changes that 

will change the look of the building (Attachment E) in June. The design team plans to have revised 

construction documents incorporating the VE changes completed by the end of July. These revised 

documents will be used to rebid the project in August. The design team, Owners’ Representatives, 

and our legal counsel (Andrew Green-Perkins Coie) continue to assist us in our pursuit of a State 

Environmental Protection Agency (SEPA) approval from the City of Prosser, which is the final 

requirement to receive our Certificate of Need (CON) from the Department of Health. After we 

submitted a Traffic Study to the City, they sent us a draft letter detailing their expectations of us, 



including upgrades to Gap Road which they call a Mitigated Determination of Non-Significance 

(MDNS) (Attachment F). In response, our team led by our attorney, drafted, and sent a reply to the 

City addressing their requests (Attachment G). The City would now like to sit down and negotiate an 

agreement so that we can continue to move forward with our project. We plan to meet with the City 

of Prosser before the June Board Work Session and will update the Board on our progress at that 

time. The original construction documents for the project were submitted to all required regulatory 

agencies (DOH, City of Prosser, USDA, etc.) several months ago and the design team is currently in 

the process of responding to their written questions. They expect this process to be complete by the 

end of July and do not expect any additional questions because of the VE changes being made. 

Finally, we continue to work with Sunnyside Valley Irrigation District (SVID) on plans to bury the 

existing overflow canal on our property, relocating that buried canal to the western and southern 

borders of our property. Once approved by SVID, this would probably take place this fall, after the 

irrigation season. Two other minor actions we are working on include the eradication of noxious 

weeds (Scotch Thistle) on our property (Attachment H) and combining our three individual lots into 

one as required by the City of Prosser in the draft MDNS. These items will be completed by the end of 

July. 

 

B. Construction/Schedule/Budget 

     In May we made the decision to terminate our contract with Graham Construction, our GC/CM, 

because we could not negotiate an acceptable Maximum Allowable Construction Cost (MACC). After 

discussions with the Board, we then chose to begin discussions/negotiations with the second place 

GC/CM bidder (Attachment I) Bouten Construction (Attachment J) as directed by Washington State 

law. Meetings with Bouten have gone well and we have reached an agreement on pre-construction 

services, which includes services through the presentation of a MACC (Attachment K). The cost of 

these services was already approved in the original GC/CM contract. We are now in the process of 

negotiating a full GC/CM contract with Bouten which will include their fee percent and lump sum 

specified conditions. When our project was originally bid, Bouten was over $1 million more expensive 

than Graham. It is unlikely we will have a draft contract for your review prior to the June Board Work 

Session, but if we do, we will e-mail it out under a separate cover. It is our intent to have the Board 

approve a GC/CM contract with Bouten Construction at the June Board Meeting. If we are unable to 

negotiate a GC/CM contract that is acceptable to the Board, we will then proceed to lump sum 

bidding the entire project. In the meantime, we have begun working with Bouten on the pre-

construction services and they have begun developing bid packages (Attachment L) and a rough draft 

schedule to begin the project (Attachment M). This schedule, which has not been coordinated with 

our financing schedule, would have us breaking ground before the end of 2022. Realistically, until we 

have a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP), we cannot complete a schedule because of the potential 

need for additional financing. There is also no work being done on the budget until we have 

completed the bid process in late August or early September. These issues will be discussed in more 

detail at the June Board Work Session. 

 

 



C. Financing 

     Financing construction projects in healthcare is becoming more challenging every day. Inflation 

has caused construction costs to increase 15-20%, and interest rates have and are projected to 

continue increasing for some time. Fortunately, most of our long-term financing is locked in at very 

low rates, but our construction loan and any additional financing we may need, are subject to these 

increases. Based on the current size of our project, every 1% increase in interest rates increases our 

cost to finance our construction loan and any additional debt (estimated to be $10 million) by over $1 

million dollars. This adds additional incentive to begin the project as soon as possible. As stated last 

month, until we know the Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) in late August, here is little we can do 

from a financing perspective. We are keeping all options open for obtaining additional financing 

including savings from value engineering; delayed capital purchases; the use of equity; pursuing 

additional debt from the USDA or other sources such as bonds; increasing our use of operating 

leases; etc. Once we have a GMP, we will present the Board with a recommendation that will 

probably include several of these options. Gary Hicks, Financial Consultant, recently heard that USDA 

is now requiring Build America, Buy America Act (BABA) for any funds they make available moving 

forward. We are currently trying to confirm this with our USDA representatives, but if this is true, we 

may not want to pursue additional funds from USDA because it would significantly delay our project 

(the design team did not specify BABA in the construction documents, and it would take a great deal 

of time to bring them into compliance with the BABA). Gary Hicks will be at the June Board Work 

Session to discuss this and other financing concerns 

 

 

2. PMH Emergency Department Plan 

     The Emergency Department continues to have record volumes month-over-month, with 1,448 ED 

visits in May.  Over the last nine months, we have been able to right-size RN staffing with the addition 

of a mid-shift RN and support from the Resource nursing staff.  We have added additional ED Tech 

support during high volume periods, extended admitting hours, and added security.  These actions 

have proven effective, and sustained volumes have supported the extra expense.   

     In addition, we have been utilizing per-diem Advanced Practice Clinicians (APCs; Nurse 

Practitioners and Physician Assistants) during high volume periods (11an- 10 pm).  The APCs have 

been beneficial, but per-diem providers do not have enough availability to meet our needs 

consistently.  We are currently attempting to recruit two full-time APCs who will provide 10 hours of 

mid-shift coverage seven days a week.  We will then utilize our per-diem providers to support 

vacation days so there is no lapse in coverage.  

     To support patient flow while the APC is working, we are looking at how we can utilize the Wound 

Care/Infusion Center when not used.  We will add privacy cubicles, expand medications available in 

the wound care pyxis, and launch an ED supply cart process.  The ED supply cart is a workflow we are 

planning to utilize in the new hospital facility, allowing us to optimize the process before launching it 

on a larger scale in the new hospital.  Other initiatives include Nurse Driven protocols and a more 



defined ED triage process.  Now, process improvement is driven by increased volumes with 

significant space constraints.  However, everything we perfect in our current facility will put us a step 

ahead when we move into the future ED.  

 

      Last but not least, Dr. Whitaker and Dr. Murphy have completed their time with us in May and 

June.  We cannot express enough gratitude for their years of service on behalf of our community and 

our organization.  It is impossible to quantify the lives they have saved, the people they have 

touched, or the excellence they have helped us achieve.  Both physicians are moving to new roles 

utilizing their expertise and experience, and we wish them well with much gratitude.  We are 

recruiting new ED providers (full-time and per-diem) to support our growing volumes. 

   

 

3. Capital Acquisitions 

     In June, we have two unexpected capital acquisition requests which will be discussed at the June 

Finance Committee and June Board Work Session. The Board will be asked to approve them at the 

June Board Meeting. The first item is a wireless electronic fetal monitor (Attachment N) at a cost not 

to exceed $30,584.12. We have struggled with the connectivity on our current monitor system for 

some time and no longer want to pay for repairs to an antiquated system. The new system will 

increase our flexibility with its use, and we plan to use COVID-19 Relief Funds for this purchase. The 

second item is the installation of a supplemental air conditioning system in our procedure room in the 

Operating Room at a cost not to exceed $16,678 (Attachment 0). We are currently on pace to provide 

over 1,000 GI procedures in our procedure room in 2022. Because of the high volume of cases and 

equipment in the room, our current cooling system cannot keep up, especially on warm days. To 

correct this, we are planning to add a supplemental air conditioning system that will keep our patients 

and staff comfortable, even on our hottest days.      

 

 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

1. Employee Engagement 

     While the weather has not really warmed-up like most summers, it is time to celebrate summer! 

To get us started, we celebrated National Donut Day on June 3rd (Attachment P). Blissful Bites, a 

local donut truck, provided fresh donuts to our staff at the Hospital and Benton City Clinic, and 

donuts were also delivered to our other clinics and Therapy / Rehab Center. On June 29th, we will be 

celebrating the 4th of July at PMH (Attachment Q). The Leadership Team will once again be washing 

the cars of our staff, Board and Medical Staff, and providing an old-fashioned picnic lunch (provided 

by AC’S Barbeque) with Shorties Italian Sodas. I encourage everyone to come to the Hospital and 

have your vehicle professionally(?) washed while you enjoy a BBQ lunch wearing your favorite team’s 



colors. Included in your packet is the June Employee Newsletter (Attachment R) which highlights 

some of the May activities including our Hospital Week Festivities.      

 

 

2. Leadership Change 

        Terra Palomarez has accepted the role of Interim Acute Care Director along with her current role as 

the Director of the Family Birthplace (FBP).  Terra is excited by this opportunity as it allows her to 

understand Acute Care Operations, develop relationships, and support the Acute Care staff.  These 

busy departments' fluctuating census and acuity mean departmental collaboration and 

communication are critical to ensure we can effectively meet our inpatients' needs.  One of Terra's 

strengths is staff development and process improvement, which she has already demonstrated in her 

short time as the FBP Director.  She intends to bring the same energy, engagement, and skill to Acute 

Care while continuing the momentum in the FBP.  Cindy Raymond and Maryann Hildebrant will 

support her as resources nurses, and she will leverage the insight she has already been gleaning from 

meeting with the members of the Acute Care team. 

  

 

3. Leader Assessment and Development Program 

         Each member of the Prosser Memorial Health Leadership Team will be preparing personal 

development plans, focused on two mission-critical leadership competencies, over the next 12 months. 

At our next LDI (July 15), each leader will work through a self-assessment process focused on 38 

internationally research-based leadership competencies. From those 38 competencies, with the 

assistance of their one-up leader, they will distill the list of 38 down to the two most important skill sets 

that will support their success at work over the next 12 months. Once the two skill sets have been 

identified, leaders will be provided resources to identify the elements to develop their own personal 

development plan that consists of experiential learning, learning from others, and external learning 

opportunities. See the development template and timeline below: 

 



 

 

           

 

 

 

 

 



4. Uniform Policy Update: 

     Effective July 1, 2022, the long-anticipated Unform Policy will go-live. PMH employees have been 

ordering and wearing their new scrubs/uniforms from our Vendor, SmartScubs for several months in a 

soft roll-out. Most orders have been fulfilled as requested, while some are partially backordered due to 

supply issues. While employees wait for their orders to be fulfilled, we will allow those employees to 

continue to wear their existing scrubs/uniforms. You will notice the following departments with their 

new, approved scrubs/uniforms in the following style/colors: 

 
Uniform Color Coding 

• RN/LPN – Navy Blue Uniforms 

• Medical Assistants & CNA’s – Royal Blue 

• Dietary – Teal Polo & Black Pants 

• Registration/Admitting – Grey Polo & Black Pants 

• Environmental Services – Light Blue Polo & Black Pants 

• Maintenance – Light Grey Button Up Shirt & Dark Grey Pants 

• Materials Management – Dark Grey Polo & Black Pants 

• Cardiopulmonary (Respiratory Therapist) – Hunter Green Uniforms 

• Laboratory – Wine Uniforms & White Lab Coats 

• Pharmacy –Caribbean Blue Uniforms 

• Radiology – Pewter Uniforms 

• Therapy Services – Ruby Polo & Black Pants 

• Surgery – Black Uniforms 

• Ambulance – Current Uniforms 
 

A special ‘Thank you” is due to Rusti Wilson, Director of Cardiopulmonary who led the initial Unform 

Committee that developed the policy and selected the vendor. 

    

  

5. PMH Security Update 

     One year ago, PMH made the decision to add security guards to the PMH campus Adding Security 

after hours and on weekends has been a huge success and benefited PMH in tangible and intangible 

ways.  The Security staff is courteous, professional, and collaborative.  They have proven themselves 

effective in handling combative patients and dealing with mental health situations.  Many PMH staff 

have expressed gratitude for the sense of physical security from their presence, staff escorts, and 

building patrols.  They are regarded as part of the PMH Team and appear to reciprocate that sentiment 

through their willingness to assume additional responsibilities to support the team while on duty.   

 

 

 

 



PATIENT LOYALTY 

1. Patient Engagement 

     Patient engagement continues to be a top priority throughout Prosser Memorial Health as evidenced 

by our latest Patient Loyalty Summer Report (Attachment S). Our overall patient satisfaction score is 

93.8% compared to our 2022 goal of 92.6%. Our ultimate goal is to exceed 95% satisfaction and 

maintain it. Our score is a collection of how each of our departments is performing, and most are near 

or exceeding their goal. More importantly, this score is a summation of the thousands of encounters our 

staff have with our patients and visitors. They are doing an outstanding job as described in the patient 

comments. A big “Thank You!” goes out to all our staff that continually exceed the expectations of those 

they serve in their provision of kind and compassionate care! 

 

 

 

Medical Staff Development 

1. Medical Staff Recruitment 

    For the past several years we have been hearing about a shortage of providers interested in 

pursuing careers in rural areas, but we have been very successful with recruitment efforts despite 

this. It does appear, however, that we too are beginning to see fewer candidates for our 

opportunities. Based on our 2022 Provider Recruitment Model, we have been successful in recruiting 

a gastroenterologist, two family physicians, and several per diem emergency medicine physicians. In 

addition, we have a contract extended to an orthopedic surgeon who plans to make a decision by the 

end of the summer (he is completing a sports fellowship 2022- 23). The physiatrist we offered a 

contract to recently notified us he has accepted a position in Boise, Idaho, primarily because he felt it 

was in his and his family's best interest to leave the political climate in Washington. We continue to 

recruit physiatrists and endocrinologists, but do not currently have any active candidates. We also 

continue to work with Dr. Wenger to recruit additional emergency medicine providers, both 

physicians and advanced practice clinicians. Because the provider market is getting tighter, we are 

beginning to have discussions about the possibility of using a recruitment firm for our most 

challenging opportunities.  

  

2. Medical Staff Engagement 

     One of our most significant engagement activities in our 2022 Medical Staff Engagement Plan is 

just around the corner. The Annual Medical Staff/ Board/ Leadership Team Social will be held on 

Friday, July 22nd at WIT Cellars (Attachment T). The event will include dinner, music, and the 

opportunity to socialize with PMH Teammates, with no formal program and an opportunity to wear 

your favorite Hawaiian luau outfit. The entire event will have a luau theme, so come ready to party! 



      FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

      1. Financial Performance-May 

                 While we continue to have strong volumes and gross revenue in May, for the first time in many 

months, we did not achieve our budgeted net income for the month (Attachment U). Our gross 

revenue was $20.8 million (one of our highest months ever!), exceeding budget by $1.5 million (8%) 

and last May by $4 million (24%). Unfortunately, most of this revenue was offset by high contractual 

allowances. As a result, our net revenue was only $123,843 (2%) better than our budget. In addition, 

our expenses in total were 5% ($336,125) over budget, primarily because of higher salary and supply 

expenses. This resulted in an operating income of $384,683 compared to our budgeted net income of 

$596,965 for a negative variance of $212,282 (36%). After adding in non-operating income, our net 

income for May was $408,167 or (35%) below expectations. While we did not achieve our budget, we 

had a positive margin. Most hospitals across the country have been losing money in 2022, with no 

relief in sight as they experience declining volumes and increased costs. Thankfully, we are not in that 

position!  

                Year-to-date all our metrics (gross revenue, net revenue, operating expenses, operating income 

and net income) remain very positive. Our net income year-to-date is $3.7 million compared to our 

budget of $2.2 million for a positive variance of $1.5 million (68%). In addition, all our metrics are 

exceeding last year. We did have a positive cash flow in May of $210,278, which helps our balance 

sheet. However, our days in net accounts receivable (57.61) increased slightly and is our largest 

opportunity for improvement. We continue to have a very strong payor mix equally split between 

Medicare (31.3%), Medicaid (30.9%) and Commercial (31.7%) patients. Overall, the financial health of 

Prosser Memorial Health remains very strong. 

 

2. Medicare Cost Report 

          PMH completed and submitted the final 2021 Medicare Cost Report on May 31 for a receivable 

of $69,146 as compared to a payable already posted at prior year-end for ($34,213). This report is in 

the Board packet and requires formal approval at the June Board Meeting (Attachment V). This 

receivable was a result of a net payable on Inpatient services of ($122,636) offset by a receivable on 

outpatient services of $191,782, driven by our clinics due to the CMS COVID productivity waiver 

giving us the ability to claim full productivity while COVID and state regulations limited our services at 

times. Our 2021 Medicaid Cost Report resulted in an estimated payable of ($158,000) as compared to 

net payable of ($233,980) already posted at prior year-end. The total in reserves at year-end are a 

net reserve payable of ($268,193). Combining the Medicare receivable $69,146 with the estimated 

Medicaid payable of ($158,000) results in a net payable of ($88,854) or an improvement of $179,339 

which will be posted to our balance sheet reserves on the financial statements in anticipation of 

additional payable amounts due back to Medicare and Medicaid upon completion of the Final Desk 

Review by the auditors. As a result, this currently will have a neutral effect to Net Income. 

 



3. Accounting Software Update 

     The ERP selection (Enterprise Resource Planning: Accounting and Supply Chain software) has been 

narrowed down to Premier, MultiView, and Oracle's NetSuite. We have had initial demonstrations of 

all but Oracle, which is scheduled for this month. We have a scheduled on-site visit for Premier 

scheduled for the beginning of August and an on-site visit with MultiView scheduled for the 

beginning of October. Our current contract is with (Providence) Engage Lawson which renews every 

year at the end of May and has been utilized since 2016 (conversion from CPSI). The selection of a 

new ERP has been delayed initially due to COVID and now staffing issues as Accounting continues to 

operate without a Senior Accountant/Financial Analyst since last August. A positive development is 

that on-site vendor implementation teams will convert from mostly virtual to on-site beginning in 

2023 and we are not anticipating proceeding with an ERP implementation until the Premiere 

Benchmarking and Productivity tool is fully implemented, which is currently in-process. 

 

4. PMH Foundation Update 

         Bottles, Brews and Barbecues 2022 was held June 10 & 11 at Vintner’s Village. The feedback we 

have received from our vendors, barbecues teams, volunteers, and guests has been extremely 

positive! A huge thank you to Evan Tidball and his dad Todd for emceeing the Friday Night Festival 

Dinner and the Saturday event. We already have vendors and barbecue teams securing their space 

for 2023! While attendance was up and people spent more money, the cost of our Friday Night 

Festival Dinner was double what it was in 2019. This is in large part due to food costs and staffing 

shortage that the caterer faced. After reconciling the profit and loss this year’s event broke even. We 

will have a BBB debrief before the July Foundation Board meeting to discuss areas of improvement 

for 2023 and the team has already produced some great ideas. We are not the only non-profiting 

feeling the effects of inflation on fundraising efforts through events and the Washington State 

Department of Commerce has opened $3.5 million in grant money for non-profits to apply for to 

offset the additional costs incurred due to inflation. Shannon Hitchcock has applied for this grant with 

a $50,000 ask to recoup money lost in 2020 and 2021 as well as the offset of additional expenses for 

2022.  

Here is a breakdown of the event by the numbers: 

Volunteers:                      100+ 
Guests Friday Night:       300 
Guests Saturday:             Approximately 2,500 based on ticket sales and a crowd estimate from 
Prosser PD and WatchDog Security 
Sponsors:                         39 
Food Trucks:                    8 (includes Prosser House) 
Barbecue Teams:            11 
Bands:                               3 
Total Bubbles & Baubles Raffle Tickets Sold: $1,500 
Total Bricks Sold:             14 @ $100 and 12 @ $250: for a total of: $4,400 
  
  



     The Foundation Board has unanimously approved Alan Steen joining their board. Alan is a long 

time Prosser resident who retired from PMH as a CRNA a little over a year ago. Alan came out of 

retirement to assist us with our COVID vaccine clinics in 2021. The Board of Commissioners will be 

asked to vote to approve Alan joining the Foundation Board at the June meeting 

The 2nd Annual Wine Country Classic is just around the corner! It will be held Friday, September 10 at 

Canyon Lakes Golf Club in Richland. Save the date to golf or to volunteer to help at this fun event. 

     The new hospital capital campaign officially kicked off the commemorative brick fundraising 

campaign at Bottles, Brews, Barbecues. Bricks can be purchased for $100 and $250 and will include a 

personalized message from you. Contact Shannon Hitchcock for more information.  

       Prosser Memorial Health was recognized by the Thrive Coalition as their 2022 Community 

Partner of the Year! We are honored to receive this recognition and support Thrive’s important 

Mission. Special thank you to Heather Morse and Steve Peters for volunteering their time to provide 

behavioral / mental health resources and attend speaking engagements for Thrive.  

 

 
   QUALITY 

 
1. COVID-19 Update 

      
          I am pleased to report that we have now taken routine COVID-19 Update reports off all Medical 
Staff Committee agendas and this will be my last routine COVID-19 Update to the Board. The reason 
for this is that the number of cases at PMH, and in our community, continue to remain low and there 
are no indications of increases in the near future. We will continue to monitor this closely and report 
any changes. We will also continue to promote vaccinations and provide them in our clinics, including 
to pediatric patients. In addition, we will continue to follow all CDC guidelines as they relate to 
COVID-19 in the hospital and in our clinics. 
      
 
 
 

2. COVID-19 Financial Plan 

           This will also be the last routine COVID-19 Financial Plan I will include routinely in the Board Packet 
(Attachment X). Since 2020, we have recognized over $15.9 million in COVID-19 Relief Funds on our 
income statements and currently have $395,163 of unused Relief Funds remaining. We plan to use the 
remaining funds before the end of 2022. While there are not any additional funds on the horizon, the 
American Hospital Association is lobbying Congress aggressively for additional funds because of the 
poor financial performance of the healthcare industry in 2022. While we would accept additional 
funds, fortunately, we are not dependent on them for our survival like some hospitals. 

 

 

 



3. 2021 PMH Critical Access Hospital (CAH) Annual Program Review 

 
     As a condition of participation with Medicare and Medicaid, all Critical Access Hospitals must 

prepare an Annual Program Review (Attachment Y) and have it reviewed and approved by their 
Board per CMS guidelines. The report is an overview of the services we provide at Prosser Memorial 
Health, our volumes, community benefit, etc. Kristi Mellema will review the 2021 PMH Annual 
Program Review with the Board at the June Board Work Session and the Board will be asked to 
approve it at their June Meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 

4. Board Policies 
         

    Per our Board Policy, we must review all policies every three years. The Board will be asked to 
review and approve the following three policies in June: Patient Satisfaction (Attachment AA); 
Sentinel Event and Root Cause Analysis (Attachment BB) and Patient Safety Plan (Attachment CC). 
There are no significant changes to the policies other than title/name changes, typos, grammar, etc. 
The policies will be placed on the Consent Agenda for approval. If the Board would like to make more 
significant changes or discuss the proposed policies, any Commissioner may remove a policy from the 
Consent Agenda and place it on the regular Board Agenda or discuss it at the June Board Work 
Session.  
 

5. June Board Meetings 
      

          The June work session will primarily be used to update the Board about significant activities 

related to the replacement facility projects including a: design update addressing value engineering 

(VE) ideas and regulatory issues; GC/CM contract review and discussion, and schedule update; and 

financing update. We will also allocate time to review: several capital requests; a PMH Foundation 

update; the 2022 PMH Cost Report; the PMH CAH Annual Program; and Board Policies. The June 

Board Meeting will be used to seek Board approval for: Board Policies a GC/CM contract; the addition 

of a new PMH Foundation Board Member; two capital requests; the 2021 Medicare Cost Report; and 

the 2021 PMH CAH Annual Program. 

          

 

If you have any questions regarding this report, or other hospital activities, please contact me at 

(269) 214-8185 (cell), (509) 786-6695 (office), or stop by and see me at the hospital.                                                                              



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment A







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment B



















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment C





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment D





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment E



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment F











Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment G







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment H



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment I



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment J

































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment K





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment L





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment M



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment N









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment P



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Q



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment R









































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment S



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment T



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment U



























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment V



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment X



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Y



































































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment AA



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment BB













Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment CC










	June Board Packet Cover Sheet
	6.28.22 Work Session Agenda
	6.30.22. Board  Meeting Agenda
	BOC Work Plan FY2022
	Copy of _2022 PATIENT CARE SCORECARD.xlsx
	Copy of _2022 Strategic Plan Scorecard.xlsx
	05.24.2022 Board Work Session Minutes
	05.26.22  Board Minutes
	6.22.22 JCC Minutes
	06-27-22 FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA
	05.23.22 Finance Committee Minutes updated
	June 2022 CEO Memo updated
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F
	Attachment G
	Attachment H
	Attachment I
	Attachment J
	Attachment K
	Attachment L
	Attachment M
	Attachment N
	Attachment O
	Attachment P
	Attachment Q
	Attachment R
	Attachment S
	Attachment T
	Attachment U
	Attachment V
	Attachment X
	Attachment Y
	Attachment AA
	Attachment BB
	Attachment CC
	Copy of _2022 Strategic Plan Scorecard.xlsx



